
Selectboard Meeting Minutes 

 

November 25, 2024 

 

Present: Doon Hinderyckx, Frank Severy, Pat Harvey  

 

Guests Present: Kristen LaPell, Julie Smith, Nancy Woolley, Orca Media, Mason Wade, Tony 

Goupee, Kathryn Schenkman, Dick Robson, Vic Ribaudo, Asia Kennett, Walter Golub, Jeff 

Gephart 

 

Guests Present on Zoom: Orca, Martha Slater, Troy LaPell, Robert Frank. 

 

Doon called the meeting at 6:14p.m. 

 

Doon confirmed the open meeting law conformity. 

 

Prior Meeting Minutes: Pat moved to accept the November 11 meeting minutes. Frank 

seconded. All in favor. So, approved 

 

Make a final selection from the RHS RFP for Architectural and Engineering Design 

Services: There were 3 proposals submitted on Friday, November 15. The funds to pay for the 

RFP will be used from the committee’s generous donor. They will not come from the town. The 

three proposals submitted were from GBArchitects - $372,000; Vermont Integrated Architecture 

- $301,127; Wiemann Lamphere Architects - $238,737. The architect selection committee met 

and graded them according to the RFP and have recommend Wiemann Lamphere as architects 

for the Rochester High School Repurposing Project. Doon moved to accept the bid from 

Wiemann Lanphere. Pat seconded. In favor. So, agreed. 

 

Discussion pertaining to Purchase Sale Agreement of HS building: Doon said they will go 

into executive session to discuss the details. Pat shared that she has the latest version of the 

agreement. She said if they agree with a signature, the purchase sale agreement takes effect July 

1, 2025. Kathryn was concerned about that date due to the BRELLA completion of Phase 1 and 

Phase 2.  She said they are ready to receive a certificate of completion. She felt there may be a 

deadline involved. Kathryn will confirm the deadline issue and let the board in order to schedule 

the transfer. The school will continue covering all operational costs until the closing date of July 

1. 

 

Discussion about next steps with High School building-Robert Gardner: Doon read Rob 

Gardner’s email as he was unable to attend the meeting. He wanted them to be entered into the 

minutes.  

Question 1: When the town voted to buy the high school building, did that vote mean that the 

repurposing committee’s plan was voted on at that same time. Meaning a yes vote on the 

purchase is a yes vote on the plan or will there be further discussion about other options. I’d like 

the selectboard to be clear on that. Doon said that vote was to buy the building, and it is a 

separate issue moving forward on the plan. Doon said there will be more discussion about the 

plan. Today we are moving forward with the details that would further that plan. This is the only 



plan that has been brought forward for the building. Kathryn wanted to clarify that the CDS-

Congressionally Directed Spending funds were for Phase 1 construction. The architects are being 

hired to do the plan for that. With the certification of the flood plain which, as Kathryn 

understands will be eminent as the second problematic one has been installed. She said hiring the 

architects is necessary to proceed with the upgrade of the building envelope.  

Question 2: If there’s to be further discussion, has it been determined how this will take place 

such as future informational meetings, a new committee or whatever? Doon shared there has not 

been a formal decision about how that is going to take place. It will however take place as it is 

right now in public meetings.  

Doon said Rob’s principal concern is that the repurposing committee and their plan were 

conceived with the basic assumption that the building was to be saved, and demolition was a 

non-stater. To the committee, as Kathryn said, demolition meant a huge bond and a vacant lot. 

Rob said it is more effective to look at the issue not as one of building and what to do with it, but 

rather a property and what to do with it. Demolition could be considered a starting place for the 

development of that property into something else. The obvious benefit of that is the $90,000/year 

cost of energy and maintenance goes away the minute the decision is made to demolish the 

building even if the building is actually not demolished for years. Doon continued reading, this 

opens a new line of questions and investigations. What are the actual line items in a demolition 

budget and how might they be reduced or adjusted? What is the most effective use of property 

for new buildings? What might these buildings be and how might they benefit the town and 

generate income? Could demolition rubble concrete, or bricks be used to fill and raise the 

property above the flood line? What are the limitations based on a construction project so close 

to the river. It is a very complicated proposition and would require a lot of research and work if 

the selectboard has already decided the town will work forward with the town’s committee 

presented, well then never mind. But if the purchase of the building is only the first step in 

considering other options as well, then I think that it would be to the town’s benefit to consider 

the repurposing plan as an option and investigate the town further. Doon said Rob has been clear 

with his opinion from the start. As well as Frank. Pat felt that demolishing the building wouldn’t 

allow for anything to be put in its place. She felt that natural resources would prevent any new 

building in its place. She also felt we were grandfathered into having the existing building. She 

said retro fitting the current building into any other type of use would make the most sense. The 

committee did explore affordable housing and that was not allowed. The federal funding is for a 

community center. Mason commented that the initiative question for the vote was very short and 

wasn’t clear why the whole project wasn’t included in the vote. He felt Rob brought up a lot of 

important issues. The initial vote, if it were worded to include the project would have taken care 

of that. Pat said the board was not required to go to a vote. She said they extended the option to 

the town. She said they didn’t want to carry the responsibility of having to make that decision on 

behalf of the town. She said to keep it simple, the selectboard will take one step forward on 

behalf of all the voters and keep informed of what is going on. If they feel they have come to 

crossroads, they will come to the town for its opinion through a vote. Kathryn said the other side 

of the building will bring in the income for the building. She said there were 9 tenants who have 

already signed Memorandums of Understanding. They can’t get lease agreements in place until 



management agreement in place with the town. She said the goal is for the building to sustain 

itself with revenues. She said the school has come in as an anchor tenant on that west wing. She 

felt it was looking positive in terms of this proposal becoming self-sustaining. She shared that 

they have given many informational meetings so she is not sure why anyone would feel like they 

are in the dark. She said there is a breakdown of the costs even for the demolition. She said you 

don’t get out of paying every single year. You continue to pay for a bond of 1.7 million. She 

didn’t understand how tearing down the building is more economical and did not have anything 

left. She said if you feel the need for certainty, then a signature on the dotted line. All 

development comes with risk. Valley Hub Inc. will have to proceed but the selectboard will make 

the decision of whether to pull the plug. Grants are being written; capital funding is continued to 

move forward. Dick shared there will be a lot of off ramps possible throughout this process. The 

architects will develop more and more information with cost information as well as the lease 

agreements to compare all those things. He said the town has not had to put any money towards 

the construction or architectural costs of the project. Kathryn shared there has not been an 

alternate plan brought forth in the four years of this project. Frank said it was up to the 

committee to offer the town options. He said when the committee first started it needed to 

present the town with options. He felt they never did. He said this is the only plan they set forth. 

He felt the reason for the committee to be formed was to present options. He shared the town 

needs options to make an affirm situation better. He felt the project was way too big for the town 

tax wise. He felt a lot of the tenants are paid already through taxation. Frank gave his formal 

resignation and will be done after this evening. He said he could not support the project. Asia 

made a comment to Frank on the alternative options from the committee and she felt they did 

explore the most discussed option which was demolition. She felt it wasn’t the responsibility of 

the volunteers to come up with an entirely different project or idea. She said an entire new 

project would have been the responsibility of someone else to propose. She said the volunteers 

on this project gave 4-years of their time on this project. She said there were other multiple 

propositions, and they were explored only to find they wouldn’t work. Walt also responded to 

Frank’s comment of taking the one wing off. He said when you lose the $2.3 million grant 

funding and donated funds specific to the repurposing and you go ahead and save the auditorium 

wing, that means that you must demolish half a building and build a wall even if you can use the 

existing electrical and HVAC. He said when you talk about the costs, how do you justify taking 

down half a building and rebuild a new wall and make it functional without grant money. If the 

town doesn’t have money, and then theoretically pays up to $90k for 5 years, how can you 

possibly put 200k-500k to have half a building left. Frank said how did we built the school to 

begin with. He said it wasn’t Grant money it was through taxation.  

Burma Cassidy was sad to hear we would lose Frank on the board. She wanted to know if there 

is a match to the CDS money. She said she wanted to know how far we have come to meeting 

the match for that grant. She asked if those funds could be spent before meeting the match for the 

grant. Kathryn stated that CDS require a fully funded project. She said they are obligated to 

come up with $770,000. She shared they have learned most of the money spent in pre-

construction costs are going towards that match and are greatly reduced. She said they have 

received a significate donation that can be used upfront. She said there has been a second 

donation that is coming in. She doesn’t know what the amount is just yet but once she does will 



the town is the shareholder. She wants to give a full figure on what the matching amount will be 

after the donations and construction costs have been figured. She said the CDBG will be applied 

for in April in the amount of $1million. Kathryn will come back with the exact number as things 

are changing. Kathryn said we can’t draw down the CDS money until the project is fully funded.  

Sign MERP Implementation Grant Agreement: This grant is for the Town Office building 

and Town Garage. Jeff said they have provided the scope of work, and they recognize the audit, 

and their work didn’t allow for cost for this environment. He said however the funding does 

allow for flexibility. He said their guidance is to do thermal things to the building envelope and 

then to look at thermal energies. He said the total of $384,440 was awarded in this grant. There is 

no match requirement. Jeff said he was willing to work on the project. Doon said he would be 

happy to work on this with Jeff. Jeff said the grant break out for each building in the amount of 

$237,980 for the Town office and for the town garage the amount of $146,460. Jeff said we have 

the freedom to move the money around so long as we follow the guidelines of the grant. Doon 

moved to sign the grant. Pat seconded. All in favor. So, approved. Jeff provided the board with 

his list of scope of work. 

 

Approve new road name for driveway off Bethel Mountain Road: Nick d’Arbeloff presented 

the board with a name for the driveway he installed on top of Bethel Mountain Road. Nick wrote 

a letter to the board explaining that he was not looking to develop the property as a major 

subdivision and would only subdivide at max to possible 3 lots. His proposed name for the board 

to approve was Terrapin Ridge. Doon moved to approve the road name, which really is a private 

drive. 

 

Department of Public Safety discussion on breaking costs out to Highway and School-

Kristen: Kristen explained to the board that the fire department has a backup generator at Terry 

Severy’s old house, and the town receives Department of Safety bills quarterly and other 

maintenance costs that would need to be paid for the generator. She said it was the fire 

departments understanding that those who use the repeater would share in these costs. It would 

be Rochester, Hancock, Granville fire departments, the town highway crew and the elementary 

school. She said when the DPS bills came in previously, she was only dividing them up between 

the three departments. She said they realized recently the school and highway also need to be 

included in the costs. She said she had broken them evenly and will now split them up between 

the 5 users. Doon said it sounded reasonable to him. 

 

Library Updates: Maya has set up a snack program for the kids at the library. Tony shared there 

will be many programs coming up and can be found in the paper. 

 

Highway Updates: Doon said we have received one employment application. We are still 

looking to replace one of the road crew members. Kristen asked if the Road Commissioner 

needed to be a selectboard member. Doon answered that it did not. Frank would be giving up on 

the road commissioner as well. 

 

Energy Coordinator: Jeff shared about the update to the library building exterior review with 

Bread Loaf. He said they removed some siding from the north side of the building.  He said there 

is no weather barrier behind the clad. He indicated all the cladding will need to be removed and 

would need to build a weather resistant barrier into the wall with a 4 “empty cavity , add 



insulation and put the cladding back on. Historical preservation would like to see the cladding on 

the lower half of the building be the faux rock block put back in place. Jeff said all the window 

frames rotted out. They need a resistant barrier to push back. He put together a scope of work for 

the north wall. The board will review. 

 

 

Old Business West Hill Road Update: Frank suggested taking Pent Road, which was dropped 

to a class 4 road. Frank said there is a dispute with how long that road is. He said we will need to 

clarify the distance of that road. He said if it’s .44 it stops in the middle of Mr. Wing’s property. 

If it goes further, it encompasses the Sherman property. He said all the maps indicate .44. There 

will need to be further research or have an attorney come in. Frank said it’s 1.07 miles from West 

Hill Road to the end where the last piece of that is discontinued. Mr. Wing would like to know 

what that distance is. Frank said he has allowed the gate to stay remained for now. It is a class 4 

there and into his property. Frank felt it would be best to upgrade the first part to Henry Garzia’s 

as Class 3 because we plow and add to class 3 list and to officially do that it would require 

certified mailings to the abutters and a 30-day site visit and then adopt as a reclassified road. 

 

Public Comment-limited to 3 minutes: Robert Franks asked several questions. He asked the 

following questions to the board. How many meetings can you miss as a board? Who is the 

attorney for the Town of Rochester? Who is the accountant for the Town of Rochester? Who is 

the Rec Committee? Who is the webmaster for the Town of Rochester? How is Teddy doing? 

Who has reviewed the Orca media meeting recording of the Town of Rochester on November 

11? 

 

Meeting adjourned at 7:03pm 

 

Executive Session:  Executive session began at 7:10pm to discuss the HS building purchase and 

sale agreement and, employees. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Julie Smith 

 


